

109 Day Hall Ithaca, NY 14853

- p. 607.255.3175
- f. 607.255.2182
- e. assembly@cornell.edu
- w. http://assembly.cornell.edu

Minutes

Codes and Judicial Committee University Assembly September 23rd, 2019 1:15pm – 2:45pm 316 Day Hall

I. Call to Order

- a. Call to Order
 - i. L. Kenney called the meeting to order at 1:28pm.
- b. Roll Call
 - i. *Present*: L. Kenney, J. Anderson, R. Bensel, J. Bogdanowicz, M. Hatch, R. Lieberwitz, G. Martin, J. Michael, L. Taylor, K. Wondimu
 - ii. Absent:
 - iii. Others Present: G. Giambattista, M. Horvath, A. Kaufman, M. Lee

II. Approval of Minutes

- a. April 30, 2019
 - i. G. Martin moved to approve the minutes.
 - 1. Minutes approved by unanimous consent.
- b. September 17, 2019
 - i. L. Kenney recommended to amend section a under Business of the Day to incorporate the discussion on working drafts of the Code of Conduct from both last year's Codes and Judicial Committee (CJC) and the University Counsel.
 - ii. R. Lieberwitz recommended to remove "Employee Assembly" from page 4 section xi subsection 3 for accuracy.
 - iii. R. Lieberwitz said that Tuesdays would generally not work for her, not all faculty members, in reference to page 6 section c subsection i.
 - iv. R. Bensel moved to amend the minutes.
 - v. M. Hatch said that a question on jurisdiction was raised during the last meeting regarding whether the Code would be separate for undergraduate and graduate students, faculty and staff.
 - vi. R. Lieberwitz recommended to amend page 4 section xi subsection 3 as a general discussion on what the roles of the Faculty Senate, Student Assembly, Employee Assembly and Graduate and Professional Students Assembly would be if there were separate Codes for students, staff and faculty.
 - vii. R. Bensel moved to accept the friendly amendments and approve the minutes.
 - 1. Minutes approved by unanimous consent.

III. Business of the Day

- a. Discussion on Meeting Times
 - i. L. Kenney said that she sent out a doodle poll which was not filled out by all members. She said that the Committee would unfortunately not be able to accommodate Judicial Codes Counselor (JCC) G. Kanter's schedule in order to incorporate all voting members. She recommended that someone else from the JCC's office attend the meetings regularly in her absence. She opened the floor for discussion.
 - ii. L. Taylor made a motion to meet regularly at 12pm on Mondays.
 - 1. A. Kaufman said that she would be unable to attend until 12:30pm.
 - 2. K. Wondimu said that his class ends at 1pm.
 - 3. L. Taylor withdrew her motion.
 - iii. R. Bensel asked if 1pm to 2:30pm would work.
 - 1. L. Kenney said that the time appears to work based on responses from the doodle poll.
 - 2. K. Wondimu said that he would be around 10 minutes late to the meeting start time.
 - iv. R. Bensel moved to set the CJC regular meetings for Mondays from 1pm to 2:30pm.
 - 1. G. Giambattista asked what the frequency of the meetings would be.
 - 2. L. Kenney requested to first decide on the meeting time.
 - 3. Motion approved by unanimous consent.
 - v. L. Kenney said that she would be comfortable returning to a biweekly meeting schedule as the Committee has done so in the past. She said that if there are strong opinions to meet on a weekly basis, the Committee can discuss that. If the Committee meets biweekly, the next meeting would be on October 7 and there would be no conflicts with the University Assembly (UA) meeting.
 - vi. J. Michael said that she is required to attend another meeting every third Monday of the month.
 - 1. R. Lieberwitz said that she would also be out of town on October 21st.
 - 2. J. Michael moved that next meetings take place on October 7th and 28th, and then proceed with a biweekly schedule.
 - 3. Motion approved by unanimous consent.
- b. Resolution to the UA
 - L. Kenney requested members of the Committee to read over the draft resolution to ensure that it accurately represents the morale of the Committee, recommends the correct avenues, and is phrased in a way that is respectful, transparent and clear.
 - ii. G. Martin recommended that the word "future" be added to drafts under "Be it finally resolved".
 - iii. R. Bensel recommended to amend "provide final approval of any and all" to "approve" under the same section.

- 1. R. Lieberwitz said that this may seem like the Committee is required to approve. She recommended the amendment "only upon a formal approval".
- iv. M. Hatch recommended including dates of when the drafts were posted.
 - 1. L. Kenney said that she has no information as to when the University Counsel's draft to the Code were posted. She said that the CJC's working draft was posted about a week and a half ago and was promptly removed after the last CJC meeting, but the University Counsel's draft remains.
- v. L. Kenney asked if there were any issues with the first "Whereas" section.
 - 1. M. Hatch recommended adding "as accepted by Cornell University President and Board of Trustees" in reference to the UA bylaws.
- vi. M. Hatch recommended including "of the Campus Code of Conduct and other related documents under purview of the CJC will be" in the "Be it finally resolved" section.
- vii. R. Lieberwitz recommended amending "are removed" to "be removed" in the "Resolved" section.
- viii. R. Bensel said that the Committee should make clear that the University Counsel draft should not have been on the Dean of Faculty website.
 - 1. R. Lieberwitz said that the draft should have been posted for public comment only after going through the proper channels.
 - 2. L. Kenney said that it may seem as if the UA and CJC are endorsing the document without context regarding origin and uses.
 - ix. R. Bensel moved to accept the recommended amendments in the resolution.
 - 1. Motion approved by unanimous consent.
- c. UHRB Staffing
 - i. L. Kenney recommended tabling the UHRB staffing issue to the next meeting, after a clearer process has been established.
 - ii R Bensel moved to table the item
 - 1. Motion approved by unanimous consent.
- d. CJC Working Draft of the Campus Code of Conduct
 - i. M. Hatch: said that from the perspective of someone who was involved in the original formulation and revisions of the Code, the question of why the Code should cover everyone on campus was discussed thoroughly at the time of formulation and subsequent revisions. He said that elaborate discussions took place, the Code was passed and accepted by the President and Board of Trustees as a Campus Code of Conduct.
 - ii. M. Hatch said that some of the past concerns raised by the President were discussed, resolved, approved and included as a part of the Code. He also said that regarding the concern that the Code was too difficult to read, this is as clear as it can get without oversimplification. He added that the Code was designed to be different from that of other universities because Cornell was founded upon a premise of uniqueness.
 - iii. M. Hatch said that there is no reason to make the Code of Conduct a student Code of Conduct. He said that the Code is a community Code, and it should be kept that way.
 - iv. L. Kenney said that in the last meeting, the Committee agreed to first work on the portion that specifically deals with student issues within the greater

- university Code. She said that the Committee discussed to have a student Code within a broader campus Code.
- v. J. Anderson said that the undergraduate student body would prefer a student Code of Conduct, as it would keep the university in line with peers and would focus on educational rather than punitive aspects. He said that such revisions would foster a more equitable system that benefits the university in the long run.
- vi. G. Martin said that the Code should not remain a campus Code simply for uniqueness. He said that incorporating Greek organizations under the Code would be something that the university could do uniquely.
- vii. R. Bensel moved to draft a resolution to reaffirm that the Committee would work on the student portion within the greater Code of Conduct.
 - 1. M. Hatch said that the word "within" is important. He said that student conduct would be a subset of campus conduct.
 - 2. L. Kenney said that the Committee aims to move forward and work on the student portion within the greater community, not to take away any rights from any group or create an entirely new student Code of Conduct. She said that the resolution would solidify that faculty and employee rights are also important.
 - 3. Motion approved by unanimous consent.
 - 4. L. Kenney strongly recommended for R. Bensel and M. Hatch to help in drafting this resolution, to ensure that the CJC is represented to the UA as it wants to be.
- viii. L. Kenney opened the floor for discussion on the Google doc of the working draft.
 - ix. R. Lieberwitz said that some of the terms within the document are confusing and need clarification. She said that based on her reading of the draft from the Counsel's office, it seems that they would not include procedures as a part of the Code. She said that doing so would be a mistake.
 - 1. L. Kenney said she spoke to the Counsel's office and they will be sending the procedural portion by the end of this week. She said that her understanding is that they envision it as a separate document, but this would be mere speculation until the Committee receives the remaining portion. She said that the Committee should wait to address this issue until it receives it.
 - x. R. Bensel asked what other portions the Committee has not received from the Counel's office.
 - 1. L. Kenney said that there are no other portions.
 - xi. R. Lieberwitz said that she supports the first paragraph under the "Principles and Values" section composed by R. Bensel. She recommended that the Committee go through all of the suggestions.
- xii. M. Horvath said that the first paragraph as drafted by R. Bensel omits guests to campus or students on university-sponsored externships or study abroad. She said that as the language is currently written, guests involved with matters on campus would not be covered.
 - 1. R. Bensel said that this document is a student Code, and that visitors will be specified in the overarching Code of Conduct. He said that within the current draft, there are references to other relevant sites that are covered.
 - 2. L. Kenney said that this discussion will be flagged for later discussion.

- xiii. J. Anderson said that a student involved in a university-sponsored experience abroad who follows their host country's laws but is in violation of the Code may be confused based on M. Horvath's suggestion.
 - 1. M. Horvath said that the Code currently only involves students oncampus. She said, however, that if a student is involved in a universitysponsored program abroad and were in violation, they would be considered on-campus based on past interpretations.
 - 2. R. Bensel said that events taking place during a study abroad program is not at a Cornell site and would thus not be on-campus.
 - 3. L. Kenney suggested that M. Horvath provide information regarding this matter at the next meeting.
 - 4. M. Hatch said that M. Horvath suggested adding "guests" to the constituents that the Code would govern, but the conversation has gone beyond that point. He asked whether a student would be governed by the Campus Code of Conduct if they were involved in a program beyond campus boundaries.
 - 5. K. Wondimu said that it may be more reasonable for students studying abroad to be governed under Cornell's Code as they may not be as familiar to the Code of Conduct of another university.
 - 6. R. Lieberwitz made a point of order to table this discussion until the Committee receives the proposal portion from the University Counsel that deals with these issues.
 - 7. L. Kenney agreed.
 - 8. J. Anderson yielded.
 - 9. L. Taylor said that the Committee should discuss what is considered a campus at a later time.
 - 10. R. Bensel said that some of these issues are discussed in Section 2.00.
- xiv. L. Kenney asked whether the Committee would prefer creating a new draft that incorporates all amended language or working with the current draft and deleting language that would not be used.
 - 1. L. Taylor moved to edit the existing document to incorporate changes.
 a. Approved by unanimous consent.
- xv. L. Kenney suggested discussing Section A before discussing processes.
- xvi. M. Horvath said that the university promulgated core values over the summer and that this section would benefit from including those values.
- xvii. J. Anderson said that the language should include both recognized and unrecognized organizations, since the university wouldn't have jurisdiction over issues arising within unrecognized organizations under the current language.
- xviii. M. Horvath said that one of the reasons why unrecognized organizations become unrecognized is because this limits the university's responsibility for their behaviors. She suggested adding some language of how unrecognized behavior would be considered for future return to become a recognized organization.
- xix. R. Bensel said that members of an unrecognized organization would be addressed as individuals under the Code.
- xx. J. Anderson suggested discussing this issue in Section 3.12.
- xxi. M. Hatch moved to accept R. Bensel's language in the working draft.

- 1. Motion approved by unanimous consent. The first paragraph from the University Counsel's draft language was replaced with R. Bensel's amendments.
- xxii. M. Hatch agreed with R. Lieberwitz's comment regarding the term "civility" in that it could be problematic in terms of free speech.
- xxiii. R. Lieberwitz said that the concept of civility is developed in ways that appears as if an individual may be removed of protections if they are not considered civil. She said that the term "civil discourse" is already used elsewhere and moved to remove the term "civility".
 - 1. R. Bensel seconded and said that civility sets a higher standard for freedom of speech than desired.
 - 2. G. Martin asked what R. Bensel meant by higher standard.
 - 3. R. Bensel said that it would be more restrictive. He said that the term civility is too impressionable and subject to personal judgment.
 - 4. The motion was approved by a vote of 8-0-2.
- xxiv. R. Bensel asked why R. Lieberwitz suggested adding "statutory colleges" in the second paragraph.
 - 1. R. Lieberwitz said statutory colleges are distinct from the land-grant mission.
 - 2. M. Horvath recommended asking Counsel about this matter.
 - 3. R. Lieberwitz said that consulting with the Counsel's office would be fine. She also said that it is a point of pride to identify aspects of the university that make it unique, as statutory colleges such as the ILR School would not exist without those statutes.
- xxv. R. Bensel suggested striking "combined with its public land-grant mission" mean as it is confusing and irrelevant to a student Code.
 - 1. R. Lieberwitz said that the fact that the university is beyond a mere private university with a land-grant mission and statutory colleges is what makes it special and informs principles and values.
- xxvi. M. Hatch moved to extend the meeting by 15 minutes. He said that the Committee would not be fully acting upon its duty with infrequent meetings.
 - 1. M. Hatch withdrew his motion.
- xxvii. M. Hatch moved to meet next Monday.
 - 1. L. Taylor said that she would not be able to make the meeting.
 - 2. G. Martin said that the frequency of meetings does not determine the quality of work that the CJC is producing.
 - 3. L. Kenney agreed. She said that members have commitments outside of the Committee and that the Committee has shown much progress so far.
 - 4. Motion approved by unanimous consent the Committee will meet on Monday, September 30th at 1pm.

IV. Adjournment

- a. Adjournment
 - i. M. Hatch moved to adjourn the meeting.
 - ii. The meeting was adjourned at 2:49pm.

Respectfully submitted, Dongyeon (Margaret) Lee Codes and Judicial Committee Clerk